
 
 
 
July 19, 2022 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Mr. Muhammad Q. Zaman 
Environmental Program Manager 
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection 
North Central Regional Office 
208 West Third Street, Suite 101 
Williamsport, PA 17701 
 
Re: Issuance of Plan Approval 18-00033B 

Renovo Energy Center LLC 
Renovo Generation Station 
Renovo Borough, Clinton County 

 
Dear Mr. Zaman: 
 
The Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (“Department”) issued Plan 
Approval 18-00033B for the Renovo Energy Center (“REC”) on April 29, 2021.  This approval 
included an expiration date of October 28, 2022, by which time the project was required to have 
commenced construction, among other obligations. The approval also identified remedies 
available to REC if these conditions are or will not be met, including that contained in item 
#006(c) under Section B., General Plan Approval Requirements, which states in part “If the 
construction, modification, or installation is not commenced within 18 months of the issuance of 
this plan approval … the Department may extend the 18-month period upon a satisfactory 
showing that an extension is justified”.   
 
This letter supplements our June 28, 2022 submittal, in which REC formally notified the 
Department of its expected inability to commence construction by October 28, 2022, and 
reiterates our request for an 18-month extension in the subject Plan Approval’s expiration date, 
further justified for the additional reasons outlined herein. 
 
Development Status 
 
At the time the subject permit was issued in April 2021, the project’s development was well 
along, with most key permits and approvals required to commence construction either in place or 
well advanced.  Based on that status, REC, supported by its Financial Advisor, Marathon 
Capital, had been actively soliciting the equity investors required to finance the construction of 
the project. The objective was to begin construction of the first unit, designed to dispatch into 
PJM and whose electrical Interconnect Agreement was expected to be completed in the near 
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term, by the end of the year, with the second unit to follow once REC had secured its 
interconnection rights with NYISO (note that for an Independent Power Project such as REC, 
construction financing typically comprises approximately one half equity and one half debt).   
 
In support of this plan, the project had solicited and received Letters of Intent from four entities, 
who anticipated making aggregate investments of up to 75% of the equity needed to enable 
construction of the first unit.  Also, several other entities were in the late stages of their initial 
due diligence activities, and were evaluating investment amounts which would have provided the 
balance of the equity needed for the project.   
 
When the subject permit was appealed in May 2021, the effect of that action on our financing 
activities was immediate and negative.  Despite the fact that the permit itself remained in place 
while the appeal would be resolved, the threat that the project could lose a key approval or have 
it substantially modified, combined with the uncertain schedule associated with resolving the 
appeal, introduced too much risk to the project from the potential investor’s perspective, such 
that it brought all their activities to a halt.  We were also advised that this would remain the case 
until the air permit appeal was satisfactorily resolved.  Now without the means to finance the 
project, REC is unable to commence construction until the appeal is resolved and these activities 
can resume and complete.  The attached letter from Marathon Capital provides additional detail 
regarding these events. 
 
Emissions Control Reassessment 
 
In support of making this request REC spent considerable time reviewing our existing permit’s 
commitments and requirements to assess whether they remain an appropriate basis for our 
project. As a result of this effort we have confirmed that the overall emissions limits included in 
the original Plan Approval continue to reflect levels consistent with a design utilizing the best 
available technology and therefore support an extension of the existing permit as initially issued.  
Our analysis concluding that emissions control technology has not noticeably changed since our 
permit was issued included the following: 
 
 In preparing this Plan Approval Extension Request, we had Power Engineers, our permitting 

consultant, perform a review of existing federal, state, and local air quality agency databases 
and recent permit issuances to confirm that the Lowest Achievable Emission Rate (“LAER”), 
Best Available Control Technology (“BACT”) and Best Available Technology (“BAT”) 
levels contained in REC’s Plan Approval 18-00033B remain valid.  Based on their review of 
EPA’s RACT/BACT/LAER Clearinghouse (RBLC) as well as other publicly available 
databases and permits issued for similar installations in the past five years, REC is confident 
that the aggregate LAER/BACT/BAT levels included in Plan Approval 18-00033B are 
reflective of state-of-the-art emissions controls and limits at the time of this submittal. 

 
 We reached out to General Electric (“GE”), who will be providing the critical Power Island 

equipment (combustion turbines, heat recovery steam generators, and steam turbines, among 
other equipment), to confirm that the control technologies being utilized for the primary plant 
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July 19, 2022 
 
Bechtel Infrastructure and Power Corporation 
Reston, VA 20109 
 
Attention:  Mr. Matthew Gaydon – Project Development Manager 
 
Subject:  Renovo PSD Permit Extension Support 
 
 
Dear Matthew: 
 
We understand Renovo Energy Center (REC) will be submitting a request for an extension of their PSD 
permit (Plan Approval 18-00033B), given their assessed likelihood that the requirement contained in the 
current Plan Approval to have commenced construction by October 28, 2022 will not be met.  In 
support of that submittal we have revisited the emissions guarantees included in our Power Island 
Equipment Purchase Order with you, which were the basis for many of the key emissions limits 
included in REC’s application for and PA-DEP’s issuance of the subject Plan Approval, including SOx, 
NOx, VOCs, and others. We offer the following results of our analysis. 
 

• The GE 7HA.02 high efficiency gas turbine being provided for Renovo remains an industry 
leader in performance technology and emission control , with its Dry Low NOx combustion 
system providing advanced fuel staging for enhanced steady state and transient performance.  

• GE will also source and supply state-of-the-art Selective Catalytic Reduction and Oxidation 
Catalyst systems that will provide emissions control at the cutting edge of today’s technology.  

• The Power Island emissions guarantees that were the basis of Renovo’s permitted emissions 
limits continue to be based on the best available technology and still represent the most 
current, state of the art guarantees we are offering throughout the industry. 

 
In summary, we confirm that the emissions guarantees we have in place for Renovo, which were the 
basis for and are consistent with REC’s current Plan Approval limits, represent aggressive guarantees for 
combined cycle projects utilizing this equipment while maintaining an industry-acceptable risk profile.  
Please advise if you require any further information or support.  
 
Best regards, 

 
James Drzymala 
Account Manager – North Region 
 
Cc: Russ Young – Sales Director 
 Ann Marie St. John-Grover – Technical Manager 














